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In an attemnt to tracae the physical appearance of Centre Street
United Metiodist Chureh throughout its 150 year histiry, it 15 necessary
to look et the different areas of the Church separately, The arnas of concern
presented in separate sections of this study are:

t- The original appearance and subsscguent alterali ons

2. The interior reorientation and other changes

3~ The heating and lighting system

. “Use and expansion of the basemsnt

Paul Ruchanan,
censultant on the project
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= The origiral appearance and subsequent alterations to the exterior

After Jr, Oliver C, Partleti, one of Nantucket's leading Methodists,
acquired the Centre Street property from Peleg Mitchell in 1822%. Plans
were immediately begun to build the new Church on the site, The Trustees
Records of 13221906 records a 'contract for the 1823 church' on Sept §,1822,
as follows:

' foundation wall to be 65 x 75

start with good broad stones, for purpose of withstanding the weight
of the icavy building

the trench is to be dug deep enough to fill up four inches of sand
1o the botiom stone

a stone wall of 18 inches deep, 18 inches thick,
20 inches on the north side and painted on the outside £ inches from
the top with lime mortar
good brick on top, one foot thick with lime mortar'?

'The Inquirer and Mirror!' on October 8, 1822 reported thal 'The cornerstons

-~

of the New Methodist Church in this place was laid yesterday.'' and although no
architect was named specifically throngh our research, a Watharial Rand was

moentioned in the Trustee Records as having been contracted on April 23, 1823
to inpect ihe foundations.® The entire soutn foundation and portions of the east
and west are accessible at this time in the basement of the Church. I appears
that the btuilders did follow the contract elosely, although the exterior dimen-
sions actually measure &4'- 6% x 76'-6", The brick foundation laid in Armerican
bond, does indee@rmeasure 12 inches thick; much of the original mortar remains
in the south foundation where excavations are incomplete, although quite a bit
had been replaced due to water and frost damage over the years, Square holes
12 x 12 inches were left in the foundation wall for ventilation, although
some have bean later filled in.

Tne east facade of the Chapel, as the new church was called, is described
in the Trustee Records in several different entries. First, in the 3ept, 6, 182 2

coniract, there are called for 'four windows to the east front, 2 below and 2

U
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placement of the doors,

'the fence on the south zide-to sxtend forty fesf westward
north-extend twenty six feet

The north and souts gate to be five fest wide and the middle six leet wide'?
The doors of the Church today ars four feet wide with the center door six
fest wide with a doutle hung door; howevsr, an earlier four foob wide doorsill
talow the sill of the 1840 center door is visidble in the furnacs room of the

the south door, in the unfinished area of the basement,

15 also visible and is four feet wide,

the 1823 door sill

It is not clear as to the size,

of windows in tho olevations other

Y

only one mentioned in the Trustees Records, Indeed the spacing of the windo

on tha south and norts semm to be more in proportion to the Creek Rsvival aliera-

tions than related to the posts visible in the interior. The rel

the windows to the postis is clearly shown in the first floor plans of the

S4B team survey. It would be interesting to examine ths exterior sheething
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on ihe next occasion of reshingling to discover if there are any traces of
vatching that would allude to having repositioned the windows at the time of
ths Gresk Revivel alteralions.

There are several references to the painting of 'uprights' in 1523 and
1830; however, it is not clear as to what the Trustees were refering. The
18273 entry mentions the uprights separately from another entry concerning
the painting of the interior; the 1830 entry refers to paining them at the same
time 25 a note 'to white lead sashes and paint steps',a
Other entries of note concerning the original exterior of the Chapel
includs ore of ¥ay 27, 1832, that the 'spouts need to be cleared',® These
apparently was 2 cistern near the southeast corner, collecting the draining
rain water fraw Sas roof, carried by the spouts, There are no traces of

cisterns in the downtown arsa today,

sheathing, plaster and
shingles on the hip roof

The gip roof, completely intact under the gable roof, is the most dis-
tinctive foature remaining of the early church, Because the gable roof was
ouilt supported on jack rafters rising from the old roof, the hip has been

protected entirely from uweathering for 140 years and still has its original

-

00d shingles, The roofing of the hip consisted of one inch thick sheathing,

often as much as 20 inches wide, spanning 3'-h", covered with a 4" layer
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of plasier, onkto which wers nalied the 18 inch long shakes with a 5 inch
oxposure. Tris lime plasier has no animal-hair tinder, but has a heavy sand
content, Imprints in thse plaster indicate that the shingles were nailed to
wnile the plaster was still damp, No nailers were used between the sheathing
and the shingles; the cut shingle nails exiend through the sheathing.in places.
Tne layer of plaster remains an enigra in that it is the only example of such
2 procass that we know, Plasier was used in southern regions under clay tile

tut not under wood shingles, It is possible that the plaster was intended

as a fire protection device to prevent the sheathing from catching in the

The structure of the hip roof was partially described and documented by

the HABS team; the axonometric focuses on the mortise and tenon connections,

without detailing the interior structure of the joints, and %ihe elevation

is of the center king post truss, There are three of these trusses supportin
the 13 foot ridze., The east and west faces of the hip are supporied by three
pair of trusses diminishing in heights~ with the same length- all related

Yo the main truss, The rafters of the hip do not rest on the top chord of

these shorter trusses except at the point, instead they rost on small jack

-7~
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ae Lop chord,

rafters extending up from i

Between the trusses that are ('-6" o.c. are intermediate rafters to support
the sheathing; the rafters are tied with collar beams at third points.

These collar beams are actually in compression due to the downward deflection
: . ¥ " wen

#‘

of the rafters.

ths collar beam betwsen
two rafters :

a dragon beam in the corner
of the hip

8-
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The steuciural condition of the last tay of the roef { the east and

wn3t ends) are also worthy of note. Ten inch sguare outlookers,in conjunction

with dragon beams at the corners, form a norizontal trusz beiween the sill

and the last cetling beam. This last bean is not a vertical truss, tut

mersly has short jack rafters up to the rafters which are less than four feet

above ihe beam,

Tne floor joists nailed to the bottom of the trusses hold rived lath

that runs transversely across the structure ( north to souts), The lath

curves down at the junction with the walls on curved cut joists., The original

there is very little key left,

plaster is but tenously held in piace;

The chimney, sel against a ki
pierces the roof in the w

The chimney in the west end of the roof, hung by metal sirars on sleepers

laid between the trusses, may have been tudlt originally with the Church in 1823,

-9-
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The trustees decided in Augusi, 1823, 'to have such stoves as are in the meeling
nouse at Providence!™. Another entry of late 1838 asks to 'have the chimney
rebuilt at the west end to receive the stovepipe'?® of a new stove purchased

to replace twe older ones,®> There is a curious pile of bricks up on the ridge
beam of the hip, possible leftovers from this rebuilding, or from rencval

of the top exposed part of the chimnsy vbich, ecuriously,does not penetrate

the gable,

Toward the end of the 1830's, the church began to feel the neced for
major repairs to their building. In April, 1838, the Trusiees called for
'partial repairs on the roof' and in August of thet year, recognized the
necessity to repair or rebuild ne'«'_st‘ep:;'.:l On #pril 21, {8&0, a major
entry concerning the need for repairs was written:

'the roofs nead rebuilding

sutters also nced to be renewed
sidewalks on south and east side, especially east are in bad condition

front fence needs to be renewed
recommend that north end of the front yard to be dug to admit 2 path-

#ay to the vestry, level from the east sidewalk:

nention of other repairs needed of minor importance?
In ¥May a committee was formed to find estimates for major repairs and in
June, 1840, the Trustees were requesed by the Church membars to proceed
tto alter the House on the ouiside and finish it in the same style as the
stheneum...'?. The Atheneum, a Greek Revival structure built in 1825, as yhe
First Universalist Church and Séciety, was destroyed in the Greal Fire of 1845,
but was rebuilt a year later, almost exactly as it had been.

The work was done guickly over that summer so that on October 31, 1840,
'The Inquirer and Mirror' reported under a heading of 'Public Improvements':

1%5th a highly commendable regard for the comiliness of their houses

of worehip, the proprietors of the Methodist Episcopal Chapel at the

corner of Centre and Liberty Streets, we perceive, have lately added

to that edifice a magnificent portico, SupEorted by a collonade of six
ponderous Doric pillars, giving to the whole structure an imposing

and strikingly beautiful appearance, They have also made corresponding
alterations and improvements in and around the enclosure at the entrance

=10~
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of thes Chapel. The design and exseutlon of thals work, reflsets great
credit on the archiiect, ¥r, 7, B, Coleman,'T

The 'pillars’ are Ionic, a dageurotype from the esarly 1840's, Capturing

: corner of the Nethadist Church in a secene of Main 3trset, shows the Chapel
2

az it was after the alterations and before the fire,” The cornice level

was raised up seven feet by the addition of a wooden entzbulature, from which

The Methodist Church and
Main 3treet before the
Great Rire of 1346,

the new gable roof sprung., The ridge rested,in part, directly on the hip ridge
and on the ends was consiructed with a proper ridge beam tha® abutted the hip.

It is possitle to see the connoction of the two ridges through the scuttle

opening in the hip accessible by a ladder, Between the ridge and the entablature,

the rafters of fhe zable are supported by jack rafters toonailed directly

onto the shingled roof with small pieces of scrap woed nailed on as 2 footing,

.r,—«-‘f}‘u! & ,e" i.
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It is possitle to se2 the connaction of the two ridges through the scuttle
opening in the hip accessible by a ladder, Petween the ridge and the entabla-
ture, the rafters of the gable are supported by jack rafters toenailed directly
onto the shingled roof with small pieces of ‘scrap wood nailed on as a footing,

Tae alterations included the wide corner pilasters, the widening of the
frint center door to six feet, the addition of three windows above the doors
on.the cast, and the application of door and window frames with moldings
suitable to the Greek Revival, The windows to ths north and south are in
the style of the earlier construction, The dageurrentyps shows the east facade
of the church without white paint; only the trim and portico are painted,

The underside of the portico originally was decorated with soma form
of coffering; some of the mioldings are still visible from below, between
the boards placed at a later date, In the attic, can be seen the back side
of the lath 2nd plaster of tde ériginal'poftico ceiling,

Another interesting note is that there do noi appear to be any downspouts
on the south facade of the church, It is possible that the clsterns earlier
mentioned, were no longer in use by this time, and it was no longer necessary
to channel water from the roof at this point, It is also possible
that there were downspouts on the rear of the church, not visible in the
dagerreoiype.

11 of the historical accounts of the Church report interior modifications
at the smae to@c a5 the exterior alterations, However, upon reading the Trustees
Records, it becomes evident that the interior work was not done until five
years later, in 1845, This work will be presented in the section concerning
the interiors, to follow,

Jittle modification has been made to the building since the major
alterations of 1840, The building was slightly damaged during the Great

Fire of 1845, which literally stopped at its doorstep, On July 16, 1846,

12

- -
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the Trustees voted to 'attend to necessary repairs caused by the fire,

about 245,37'® and on August 24, 1846, decided to make the roofs of the Chapel
accessable in case of fire, 'by placing a walk on the ridge',® It is not
clear if this 'walk' was ever actually constructed, but there is a signature
in the rafters of the hip roof, 'Charlie Parker, Aug 25, 1846', an interesting
coincident of dates,

Work on the Church exterior has been limited mostly to maintenance,
painting, and reshingling of the roof and walls, The first reference to painting
was in April,1844, 'paint the outside and the Hall'®, but whether that refered
to painting the entire east facade or just the trim is not specified. At
some point mid-century, the east frant was painted; in 1863 there is a record
of 'two new coats of paint on front'*.

The portico columns needed frequent repair, as well as painting,~and
their bases and pillars were objecis of much concern, In 1851, the brick
pillar 'under the north column!® was repaiped and it has been repointed since
then, as recently as the 1950's, The bases of the columns most probably were
wood, and their deterioration prompted the Trustees in 1858.£6 'aséeftain
for stone bases for the columns'a. Again, execution of the work is uncertain,
The column bases are all now of cast concrete; the molds for the bases are
in ‘he bassment,

At the turn of the century, more exténsive maintenance was done on the
exterior of the-Chapel. From the pastor's report to the 4th Quarterly
Conference held March 5, 190%, comes the following;

' Now perhaps it will not be out of place to give an account of the

repairs and improvements, as carried on by the building committee as

elected,,,The first part of the work consisted in repairing the front

of the Church, the columns and their bases, with bzick work being in

a perfectly dilapidated state, the putting wp of ths now gutters, the
old ones being cempletely rotted out, the painting of all this work,

- and the [ront of the Church and entering the sewer, cost 3937.00 without
discounts; the work ifself made work which had to be done, making it
$1000,00, 10

e
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nd from 1909 comasz another report from a pastor to a Quarterly Confersnce:

A part of the south side and west end of the church has been recilled

nd the foundations reLayﬂd where the old sill had decayed, the Church

wad ssttled and we found it necessary to raise it and in doing so, the
plasmring inside the auditorium rpom was cracksd and necessitated
vepairing and that has been done,'”

The repairs to the sill are still very evident in the exposed section of the

basement. Hew brick piers had been tudlt out from the foundstion inside

the southwest corner Yo help support the floor beams, The new sill on the

south wall, is of wood, a large timber but not hand hewn, and 1s spliced

into the old sill approximately eight faet from the west wall, The southern

end of the west sill has bsen replaced a second time, perhaps when the major

excavations wsre being done in the 1960's,

the south 5i11 of wood
and west sill of concrete
block

T

In the most recent period of exterior renovations, the entire wooden
porch had been rebuilt and new swpports of concrete block built underneath, .
Painting of the front and trim, and repointing of some of the brick on
the piers under the columns was also done at this time,

In conclusion, the church has had two different appearances over its
lifetime; the first, a shortlived traditional meeting houss with wncertain
details, the second, a fully articulated Greek Revival appearance, The
building has had no major changes in its exterior detail since 1840, but

has under gone continuous minor maintenance, The existance of the hip roof Z

~fha
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oeneath the gable roof and the special details of the roofins materials
T ing materi:

are a special factor in the architectural significance of the building

-15-
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2- The interior: rscrientation and other changes

~oby

The interior of the Methodist Church has undergone at least two major
conversions and several minor alterations, then.tuilt in 1823, the pulpit and
altar had baen on the east ans after the exterior renovations were made in 1840,

the interior was reoriented to face the wsst, Then, in 1904, a major space

was constructed above the vestibule and extends into the sanciuvary space at
the balcony level te provide space for Sunday School and social services,
The misor alterati ons included alterations in the pulpit, additions of
stairs, and doors, and conversions for various heatinz systems,

The Contract for thé 1823 Church listed the following provisions for the
interior of tre Church: -

'panel the front of the gallery, curled on the pulpit
ons ﬁair of stairs out of light wood back front
mahogany ralling and bannister down the altar
120 paws on the lower floor, each eight by three leel
the gallery is to be finished with free seats
$100,00 per pew «will be the average'?
Other entriss refering to the interior prior to 1844, include 2 note to
varnish the mahogany, have 'cushions in the pulpil covered wih green damask
silk!, 'make a tablée for the altar!', 'paint the front of the gallery and the
pulpit!, 'put blind doors to the Chapel!, fom a teommittee for cutting an aisle
betwsen the male and female singers of the Chapel', and 'to cause doors to be made
% a . ’ s
and put up to the gallery stairs in the Chapel'. Ths description of the chapgés
orovosed in 1844 shed more light on the original features of the interior
and read:
'alteration of pulpii: )
can be placed in the west end of the lNouse
the west gallery taken out
the pews turned to face the west

the floor made level by lowering the west end o
four or more pews added to the present nuuber!

-16-
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Tne location of the 'lofty puloil', as it is referred te in later hist-
ories, is5 siill up to conjecturs, Iis position in thé east is certain bul as
the flooring indide the sanchuary has been relayed several times, any marks
from the pulpit have been cbliterated,

Tna pews wers built integrally with the flooring system. Flecor beanms,
running across the body of the church, were notehad for floor jéists (just
over two feei on center), that in turn supported the flocr boards, “ithin
the arean of the pews, the fleor beards ran north-south across the Church, bui

the side aisles wers framed out and the joists turnmed the oppesite direction
50 that the floor could run longitudinally (east-wesi), This is documented in
the rreject dravwings in Appendix B of this paper, 4 slot was cut in the edge

of the aisle flooring, 1 x 17 inches, to accept the end board of the pews; this

carn bz ssen clearly at the west end of the south aisle where the pews were

the framing of the sids aisle
with clear marks of hand hewn beams

The cenuer back post of each pew is set inte a hole cub out of the flecor
boards; it is this detail that cnables us to read the areas of original flooring
in the sanctuary, Ghen the pews were turned, tho posis were cut off levsl to

the floor, leaving the end of the post to plug the hole. Locating each plug

217
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on & vplan of *he sanctuary indicates that the center section of [looring,

12 fect from the west wall extending 45 feet to the east, has not besn altered;
the post marks are all in line in both directions and egually spaced- except
for vapiations of an inch or two caused by the posts not bzing plumd and the
pew hacks not being perfectly in line. A portion of these center_pewa can

bs seen from the undersids in the basement, and it is evident that the original

floor framing is s5%ill in place,

plug approximately
-
i

st
3/4" x 3

fur

under the center section of pews

Twelve feet from the west wall, extsnding from side &isle to side aisle,
is the mark of the back of a section of pews; on the south there is a one

wide shadow on the surface of the floor board and in the north, an inch

Pl

[N
o]

e
wide paich running across the floor, {The canter is inacessable due to the

carpeting,) I¢ is possible that the west end pews that were lowered in 1845,
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wnre behind the center section, saparated by the space of an aisle and up
azainst ihe tack wall of ths church,
In the suamer of 184L, the subject came up as to an alleration of the
altar in the Chapel and it was decided that any changes of the altar would
te impractical without other changes occuring at the same time.® The
aforementioned modifications sere plannad in August of that year and in February
of 1843, wore approved,” Tt was decided at that time, the work would be paid
for by selling the four additional pews (gained by the alteration) and by
'gratuitous subseription' without any taxing of the pews, (The exterior
renovations of five years earlier had been financed by a 6% tax on the pews,
as were many other alteraiions and repairs,) An earlywdrawing of the pew layout,
made the time of the changes in 1845, shows the pews much as they are today,®
The four pews that were added, were removed by 1893 when stairs from the balcony
and down into the bassment were constructed.f Eight pews were removed from t
sast end of the center ssction in 1874, 10 provide space for two new stoves,?
Mthough the reference in 1844 in the Trusiess Record is to making the
floor level®, speeifically in Lhé weséi%ﬁe;e'ipﬁétently a seetion of pews
were raised, it seems that the raising of the side pews and the sbepping
stopped news

speeially cut
piece of board

(-
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of the back pews was also done at this time, There are no references to any
such major construction after 1845, The raising was dome on the side aisles

hy cutting the joists that had been mortised in to the floor beams
,

, notching new joists above the besms and scplacing the fLooring; thereby
lifting the section three inches, The rear portion was stepped at the
insertion of a stringer, stepped in three inch increments, above the beam,

Tais condition has been detailed in section with the documentation drawings,

~20-
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« BRI
25 {loaring te siraight? Could floor toaxnd
e
o 4oists urderneaih wers

af v seh av an angle? Thc joists underneain wers

: 5 39 dha ) e 223 Fesn 1tid znzled
orobably always straighty thersfors, i the boards nad been L:id zngled,
x

there should be old nailholes diagomally across each board, Amazirgly,

4 quick cheek showed each board to have two, and sometimes three holes,
squape without nails., 3o filled with dust and dirt, they wers almost hidden,
taoy locstad on an angle approximately where the joists would n3ve crossed,
Takinz measurements of the holes found them to be an average angle of 18
jegrees, Further examination of the ends of the floor boards, showed
six incidents where 2 small cornsr of the board was cut off, again witn

a fow degrees of 18, One board in the caventh pew from the west, south alsle,

has a triangular noteh neay the center of the end with a neatly drawn pencil
line marking the proper angle, A board in the north section, has a triangular
pateh three fezt and almost one foob on its two sides.

Using the 18 degree angle and the width of the sxisting pew doors,

VoLl

a diazram can bs drawn showing the pews and floor boards at an angle,
gram can bs drawn showing I

s of the pew backs romain perpendicular with the pews, so that when
the boards are taken wp, trimmed and layed straight, the plugs are also

straighi; howevar they zre closer together than the ones in ithe center,
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fhere is the answer thea Lo the first question,

The framing out of the side aisles, curious hecause the center aisle
is not framed out in the same fashion, where the floor alse runs longitudinally,
APPRArs 23 & consciues provision for extra support for the ends of those

dizgonal flocr boards, The angle cut off the pew seat becomes a conmection

to the wall,

ths post on west :i11,
which could have helped
to support the gallery

Because of the refercace to renoving it.in fks, 's_;o‘!.mow a west
gallery nad existed prior to that date. Thers is an :.'mtemediate pos{
on sither side of the west wall on line with the front sdges of th.e north
and south galleries, This is visible from below in the wilinished portion
of the basemeni, Tt appears that the second piers in from the west wall,
alliough they are boxed over square, were notched away just below the top
edge of the balcoriy. This is where a bea;:x could have angled down, in
conjunction with a bean from the west post, to support the cornar of the
west balcony, The baleony would than have been approximately eight feet
wide, narrower than the width of the north and south balconles,

An entry in the Trustees Record of 1832, notes that a Pepey Jenking

had agreed to put a vestry in the gallery for pitlic prayer meeting and

singing,:‘ It is not clear wheve they refer,

224
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T a Trustses called for 'frec seats' in the galleries,® Those that
exist thers now are straight backed benc‘ne's of iwo different types,
3istinet from the psws below; it is possible thay were salvaged from another
church, or perhaps the Fair Street Church. :

Access to the gallery at this time, and until a second dtair was
added in 1904, was by a single flight of stairs in the southeast corner
of the vestibule, referred to in the Clontract Ifor the 1823 Chur'::h.a
In 1844, a door , which remains today, was put ovér the stairs at the first

landing.a

.

i

The original east gallery, as wids as the vestibule, has been
concealed by the 1904 construction of the 'upper vestry'. A 1901 photograph,
in the HAR} documentation, shows the front of this. zallary as having 2
shallow project;ion of pernhaps ten to twelve feet wide in the center and
a curved corner where the gallery comnecis to those of the north and south,
This curved conmecticn could have occured on all four corners of the
gallery, although thers is no physical evidence to support it, The front
edge of the gallery had coffered panellinj which was painted with the rest
of the trim, In the %301 photo, the front of the gallery appears to be dark

stained and polished mahogany; however paint samples taken indicate that
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thls was a layer of very dark reddish brown paint, This color was used on
the boxed piers, door sills, wainscoting,.and also o the cast iron columns
supporting the balcordes, around the turn of the century,

The cast iron columns that support the north and south zalleries
wers most probably added in tha 1845 alterations, for two reasons:
(1) the vse"of cast iron was limited before that time, i.e, in the 1823

base

construction, and (2) there aro large patches in the flooring atb the

column base at north aisle,
west end

The location of the choir in the gallery, or elsewhere, is unknown.
In 1836, thers was a committee formed 'for cutting an aisle between ths
mele and female singers of the bhapel'a, but again, thers is no physical
evidence of this change,

The Appleton Organ, purchased by the Ladies Aid and the Assleyan
Society for the Church in 1853, wes installed in the east gallery in 1859.
I remained there wntil 1893.f The west wall behind the aliar had remained
plain since the alterations of 1845, A second wall had been built over

the original west wall, possibly when the baleony was removed,to cover

e breaks in consiruction, An arched niche, about fourisen feet tall
atoste 9

"
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yas formed behind the altar, There is no mention of it being decorated
untll 2 mirister's report at a Qﬁarterly Confarencs stated that betwesn
1872 and 1320, a trompe.ltoeil 'frescoe(d) back of the pulpit'® inside
the niche and 2 bordsr painted round the opening, This frasco, hidden
anen the organ was movad in front of it in 1893, is still visible from

a vantage point'above and to the side of the organ, It is also partially
visille between the pipes of the organ, There are three Corinthian
colunns supporting a doutled arch, The 'floor' between the columns is
painted to recede, giving the trompe-l'oeil effect, The fresco, however,
does not fill the entire space of the niche; the sides featheripg of f ahout
a foot sway from the edge, This lsads us to believe there may have teen

some Kind of concealment at the sides of the niche,

The decorative border is still visible at the top of the arch where it
has not been painted over, About eight inches wide and comprissd of

several rows of painted moldings and beads, it is topped with a swirled design,

g%t
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evidence of ths double
wall on ths wes

At the turn of the centnry, the Methodist Church felt the need for
alditional space for its 3unday School and other sctivities, In attempting
to meet this need, the sast balecony was extended out over the sanctuary,
approximately 17 feet, and enclosed as ap uppep‘vestry.b This work included
the installation of a major staircase in the north of the vestibule,
comp.*tely blocking the north door of tﬁe east frént, Access from the original

gallery stair was probably closed off at this time, The vestry remains

much as it was when built, except that it has been given over to the
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Arts Aszsociation for thasir use; a stage has been ouwlli cover the aliar area

and the cemmunion rail, altar, and pulpit'removed {They now 3it in the

ey -

south talcony.).

Upper Room with temporary
puopet show stage
R T

an early view of the choir
from a postcard, 1911;

the platform had been built
in iz 93

For its 150th anniversary in 1949, thers were major intsrior
renovations done to ths Thurch, Mr, Edgar Jenny, the inbterior designer
of the Parliment Euilding in Toronoio, designed the whits coffered enclosure
for the choir behind the altar.3 (According to Mrs, Tharlotte Xing remarks
that befor the rail was put up, the view of the choir was so disconceriing
*zen had to shut both your eyes',) Additional steps were put up to,ihe

altar platfom by Mr. Rezgie Reed. -

Because of fire code rezulati ons, a second stair from ihe balcony
was required and built in the southwest corner of the sanctuary,
The corner pews had already been removed when a door was placed in

the west end, opposite the side aisle, perhaps in 1504 when various renovations
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4

were occuring, The door does not apzear in the 1901 photc and is made . i,

' of matchad and beaded siding, which was most widely in use between
1880~ 1512, {3nadows of the corner pew backs remain in the wainscoting,
cut through by the later doorsill,) Another stair down to the basement
.on_tae northwest corner was also built in 19%9 (¥r, Reggie Reed was on

trhs crew,), and an axit door to the west was installzd, with panic hardware,

at the intermediate landing.
R 5 5
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T entire interior of the ctuary aint in 1949, by a cre
a0 51 1 U r e 1 > da on a stud O i

was ¥y, Awold 2n21l, who was then in nis early twenties; his father,
0z d 3mall, ths crew leader r aall recountea t-sy rked
o caffoldi bailt to roll zlo th ge of % gallery, largs

2 te ry fiv n acro the width of ths Crhurch r. wall
also reported, tafore they could do any inting, the d to wash t
calcimined ceiling, as th ew paint d not have adhered to the o
layer o o ring wnit h,




